Tuesday, January 26, 2016, 3:00-5:00pm, Goodwin Forum (NHE 102)

Acting Chair Julie Alderson called the meeting to order at 3:01pm on Tuesday, January 26, 2016 Goodwin Forum, Nelson Hall East, Room 102; a quorum was present.

#### **Members Present**

Abell, Alderson, Blake, Burkhalter, Camann, Chipres, Creadon, Dunk, Enyedi, Eschker, Flynn, Gold, Guzman, Karadjova, Karl, Lopes, K. Malloy, N. Malloy, McGuire, Moyer, Ortega, Pence, Stubblefield, Thobaben, Tillinghast, Wilson, Wrenn

#### **Members Absent**

Cervantes, Meyer, Rossbacher

#### **Guests**

Ken Ayoob, Jená Burges, Lisa Castellino, Theodora Kalikow, Cyril Oberlander, Scott Paynton, Craig Wruck, Rick Zechman, Noah Zerbe

#### **Announcement of Proxies**

Guzman for Cervantes, Ortega for Meyer

#### Approval of and Adoption of Agenda

M/S (Flynn/Ortega) to approve and adopt the agenda Motion approved unanimously

#### Approval of Minutes from the December 1, 2015 Meeting

M/S (Chipres/McGuire) to approve the Minutes of the December 1, 2015 meeting Motion approved unanimously

#### Reports, Announcements and Communications of the Chair

Written report attached

#### Reports of Standing Committees, Statewide Senators, and Ex-officio Members

**Academic Policies Committee:** 

• Written report attached

Appointments and Elections Committee:

Written report attached

#### California Faculty Association:

#### CFA Bargaining and possible strike update:

- The neutral third party will be briefed on views and facts as CFA sees them. She will
  provide a fact-finding report within 30 days of the briefing. Once the report is
  completed, the sides have 10 days, expected to be around the end of March or early
  April, to study the final report and possibly reach a settlement.
- The CFA Board of Directors will meeting on February 2<sup>nd</sup>; Mike will have more information to provide at the next Senate meeting.
- CFA would like to identify someone at each department level who would be willing to help convey information, and aid in organization if the statutory process ends and faculty gain the right to strike.
- Labor council strike sanctions are continuing to be granted; Humboldt and Del Norte Counties CLC, join the sanctions in support of CFA.

#### Constitutions and Bylaws Committee:

Written report attached

#### Faculty Affairs Committee:

Written report attached

#### Integrated Curriculum Committee:

• Written report attached

#### **Labor Council:**

 Labor Council will meet next week to discuss how a faculty strike would affect other bargaining units and how they would respond to a faculty strike.

#### Statewide Senate:

 A report (attached) from the ASCSU Plenary Meetings that took place January 20-22, 2016 is attached. Mary Ann Creadon asked Senators to contact her with any questions, comments or suggestions, particularly pertaining to AS-3244-16/APEP Support for Four Years of Mathematics as a Requirement for Admission to the California State University.

#### University Resources and Planning Committee:

- URPC met last week; will be meeting again on Friday, 1/29/16
- Plans are to provide more frequent updates and gain more meaningful involvement from Senate.
- The committee continues working on Strategic Budgeting. The process is a 5-year

strategic plan that looks at our goals, how we spend our money and procedures to improve outcome.

#### Administrative Affairs:

- Quarterly Report for Senate attached
- Additionally, Vice President Lopes shares that the Climate Action Committee is working on a draft plan that they hope to have in action by 2017. Updates on the group's progress will be forthcoming.

#### **University Advancement:**

Spring Semester Update for Senate attached

#### Student Affairs:

- Vice President Blake reported that approximately 8100 students are enrolled for the spring term.
- The recently vacated position of Associate Vice President for Enrollment Management, is going to be filled with an interim off campus candidate. A search committee has been organized to find a permanent replacement for the position.
- Rachel Fusi has been named the Interim Coordinator for Orientation and Preview Programs. A permanent search for the position will be forthcoming.
- Robyn Jones has been named the Interim Director of Admissions and New Student Programs. A permanent search for the position will be forthcoming.

#### Provost's Report:

Dr. Alexander Enyedi was introduced to members of the Senate who he had not yet had the opportunity to meet. Provost Enyedi shared how privileged he feels to be at HSU and how much, during these first 12 days on campus, he has enjoyed the exciting opportunity to meet so many students, staff and faculty. He has particularly enjoyed hearing their individual stories about Humboldt.

Amongst ongoing items, the Provost noted several areas on which he will be focused:

- 1. Work with the URPC's Strategic Budgeting plan, to achieve our goals
- 2. Student success initiatives
- 3. WASC reaffirmation of accreditation

#### Consent Calendar from the Integrated Curriculum Committee (ICC)

The ICC Consent Calendar from the 1/19/16 ICC meeting was approved. (Copy attached)

# Resolution on a New Concentration in Economics for the Business Administration Major (15-15/16-ICC-January 26, 2016)

M/S (Moyer/Gold) to move the resolution

The College of Business in collaboration with the department of Economics is recommending that a new Concentration in Economics in the Business Administration Major, as proposed in Curriculum form 14-315, be approved. Both departments are in consensus that it will aid in the rate of and time to graduation.

The Senate voted by roll call vote; the Resolution on a New Concentration in Economics for the Business Administration Major (15-15/16-ICC-January 26, 2016) passed without dissent.

Ayes: Guzman, McGuire, N. Malloy, Wilson, Stubblefield, K. Malloy, Wrenn, Meyer, Lopes, Dunk, Karadjova, Flynn, Ortega, Pence, Karl, Creadon, Cervantes, Abell, Chipres, Blake, Gold, Moyer, Eschker, Burkhalter, Thobaben

Abstentions: Enyedi

Third Officer, Andrew Stubblefield, assumed the duty of acting Senate Chair for the remainder of the meeting.

# Resolution to Appoint an Interim President of the General Faculty (16-15/16-CBC-January 26, 2016) First Reading

M/S (Abell/Moyer) to move the resolution

The position of General Faculty President has been vacated by resignation. In accordance with section 4.72 of the Constitution of the General Faculty, the General Faculty Executive Committee have recommended the appointment of Julia Alderson to serve as interim General Faculty President until the next regular election. The faculty members of the University Senate must vote to approve this appointment.

M/S (Moyer/Gold) to waive the First Reading

Faculty senators voted by roll call vote to waive the First Reading of Resolution to Appoint an Interim President of the General Faculty (16-15/16-CBC-January 26, 2016) passed.

Ayes: Thobaben, Abell, Dunk, Ortega, Meyer, Burkhalter, Wrenn, Creadon, Gold, Eschker, Moyer, Karadjova, McGuire, K. Malloy, N. Malloy

Nays: Wilson

Faculty senators voted by roll call vote; Resolution to Appoint an Interim President of the General Faculty (16-15/16-CBC-January 26, 2016) passed unanimously.

Ayes: Thobaben, Abell, Dunk, Ortega, Meyer, Burkhalter, Wrenn, Creadon, Wilson Gold, Eschker, Moyer, Karadjova, McGuire, K. Malloy, N. Malloy

#### **DISSCUSSION ITEM: Discussion of CBC Report**

CBC Chair, Jeffrey Abell made available the opportunity for feedback and/or discussion regarding the following portion of CBC's written report:

In accordance with Senate Bylaws 14.0, the CBC was asked by the Senate Executive Committee to review the University Senate governing documents and determine if a sitting elected Senator may serve in an interim ex-officio role and then return to their elected position after the period of interim service. The CBC has reviewed the pertinent documents and unanimously agreed on the following interpretations:

- A member <u>may</u> return to their elected Senate position after a period of interim ex-officio service that is no longer than three consecutive Senate meetings;
- A member <u>may not</u> return to their elected Senate position after a period that is longer than three consecutive Senate meetings. However, that member may run for election to that seat again in accordance with existing terms of office and eligibility rules.

Our justifications for these interpretations are as follows:

- Senate Bylaw 12.41(b) states: "The Senate seat of an elected member shall become vacant when the member: b) becomes an ex officio member of the Senate". As there is no qualification of how the member becomes ex officio, we concluded the acceptance of an interim ex-officio appointment would still constitute a vacancy in the formerly held seat.
- Once a vacancy is established we must hold a special election to fill the vacancy in accordance with Senate Bylaw 12.43: "Any vacancy which may occur between regular elections among elected senators to the University Senate shall be filled by a special

- election. Any person so elected shall represent the appropriate academic unit and shall serve the remainder of the vacated term."
- We considered whether service in an "interim ex-officio" role should be considered an "absence" instead of a vacancy. We concluded that if the interim service lasts no more than three meetings, the seat is simply absent. As such the bylaws would not require a special election or appointment to fill the seat of the absent Senator. However, during the period of absence, the member cannot appoint a proxy to that seat while serving in the interim exofficio role. That violates the fundamental parliamentary law of one person, one vote.
- We concluded that an interim service that is longer than three meetings would constitute a vacancy in accordance with Senate Bylaw 12.41(d)(i): "The Senate seat of an elected member shall become vacant when the member: is absent without a proxy for three consecutive regular meetings." Beyond three meetings, the absence is too lengthy. The electorate's representation on the Senate is seriously diminished. Hence, the seat would be considered vacant and a special election would be held to fill the seat in accordance with
- We unanimously agreed that, if directed by the Senate, the CBC would draft and bring forward as resolutions, modifications to the bylaws that would allow: 1) elected Senators to return to their seats after serving interim ex-officio positions; and 2) allow for appointments of interim Senators to fill the vacated seat during the period of interim ex-officio service.

Senators required no further explanation or discussion.

Meeting adjourned at 3:56pm

# HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY Senate Chair's Report Senate Meeting, January 26, 2016

January 4, 2016

Dear Colleagues,

As many of you have no doubt already heard, I have accepted the position of interim Associate Dean for the College of Arts, Humanities, and Social Sciences effective at the start of the spring semester. As a result, I must resign my position as President of the General Faculty and Chair of the University Senate, effective immediately. Per the terms of the Constitution and Bylaws, Julie Alderson will assume the role of Senate Chair until such time as an election can be held to fill the duration of the spring semester.

It has been my pleasure to work with all of you over the past three and a half years. I have deeply appreciated how each of you has dedicated yourself to this institution, giving selflessly of your time and energy to serve on the Senate. We've had ups and downs, but through it all I think we've managed to live up to the aspirations that drove the establishment of the University Senate model, working collectively across divisions—faculty, staff, students, and administration—to make Humboldt State the kind of intuition that drew us all here in the first place. I look forward to continuing to work with all of you in the future. Thank you all!

Sincerely, Noah

#### **HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY**

University Senate Written Reports – January 26, 2016 Standing Committees, Statewide Senators and Ex-officio Members

#### **Academic Policies Committee:**

Andrew Stubblefield, Chair, Faculty CNRS
Paul Cummings, Faculty, CAHS
Jena' Burgess, Vice Provost
Clint Rebik, Registrar
Su Karl, Director, Learning Center
Michael Goodman, Faculty, CAHS
Zitlaly Macias, Student Rep.

#### Agenda Items for Spring 2016

- Syllabus policy a new website has been established –
   "http://www2.humboldt.edu/academicprograms/syllabus-addendum-campus-resources-policies". Revised syllabus policy will come to Senate shortly requiring instructors to provide the link and describe
   what is found there.
- 2. Policies regarding U-Direct course planning software implementation. –*U-Direct steering committee* has created draft policy documents. They will be reviewed by APC, ICC, then to SENEX, and Senate.
- 3. CSU Open Educational Resources Initiative will be working with Senate Executive Committee to meet 2 requirements by June 30, 2016:
  - Adopt a resolution that states its support to increase student access to high-quality OER and reduce the cost of textbooks and supplies for students. (to Senate on 1/26/16)
  - o In collaboration with students and campus administration, create and approve a plan that describes evidence of the faculty's commitment and readiness to effectively use grant funds (\$50K per campus) to support faculty adoption of OER. (to Senate by end of Semester)
- 4. Policy for supervision of courses taught by undergrads. -beginning work on this topic.
- 5. Academic honesty policy revisions online activities. —Tabled pending input from Randi Darnall-Burke and Ben Witt.
- 6. Attendance & Disruptive Behavior Policy is out of date. *Tabled pending input from Randi Darnall-Burke and Ben Witt.*
- 7. Relevant items from HSU Strategic Plan. –*Tabled pending recommendations from Strat. Planning Committee.*
- 8. Faculty initiated drop policy Suggestion of removing clause "without notifying instructor".

- 9. Discussion of ways to help transfer students succeed with constraints of: high numbers of transfer units, state and federal financial aid limits, high unit majors, etc. —Possible item for later in semester.
- 10. Review of existing academic policies for relevance and enforcement/enforceability. —Possible item for later in semester.

#### **Appointments and Elections Committee:**

The General Faculty Call for Nominations, for terms beginning fall 2016, went out 1/13/16 with a subsequent  $2^{nd}$  notice sent on 1/19/16. Faculty members are needed to serve on numerous campus committees. There are approximately 60 positions open, and we've received around 30 nominations.

Please encourage other faculty members to consider getting involved in one of the available committees. You may nominate a colleague or self-nominate by emailing the University Senate Office (<a href="mailto:senate@humboldt.edu">senate@humboldt.edu</a>). Nominations are due by **Wednesday**, **January 27**, **2016**.

Ballots will be sent out February 2<sup>nd</sup> and will remain open until February 9<sup>th</sup>.

Please visit the Committee Directory <a href="http://www2.humboldt.edu/senate/committees">http://www2.humboldt.edu/senate/committees</a> for more information about each committee. For general information on committees, see section 800 of the HSU Faculty Handbook via the following link: <a href="http://www2.humboldt.edu/aavp/sites/default/files/facultyhandbook/Section800.pdf">http://www2.humboldt.edu/aavp/sites/default/files/facultyhandbook/Section800.pdf</a>

#### **Constitution and Bylaws Committee:**

**Membership:** Jeffrey Abell (Chair), Kathryn Guzman, Brian Kyte, Mary Locher, Jeremy Shellhase **Meeting Time and Location**: Fridays from 09:00-09:50 in NHE 116.

- The CBC met on January 22, 2016 to address an interpretation issue brought before it by the University Senate Executive Committee. Members in attendance were: Jeffrey Abell (Chair), Kathryn Guzman, Brian Kyte and Jeremy Shellhase. Proxies were: Jeffrey Abell for Mary Locher.
  - In accordance with Senate Bylaws 14.0, the CBC was asked by the Senate Executive Committee to review the University Senate governing documents and determine if a sitting elected Senator may serve in an interim ex-officio role and then return to their elected position after the period of interim service. The CBC has reviewed the pertinent documents and unanimously agreed on the following interpretations:
  - A member <u>may</u> return to their elected Senate position after a period of interim ex-officio service that is no longer than three consecutive Senate meetings;
  - A member <u>may not</u> return to their elected Senate position after a period that is longer than three consecutive Senate meetings. However, that member may run for election to that seat again in accordance with existing terms of office and eligibility rules.

Our justifications for these interpretations are as follows:

- Senate Bylaw 12.41(b) states: "The Senate seat of an elected member shall become vacant when the member: b) becomes an ex officio member of the Senate". As there is no qualification of how

- the member becomes ex officio, we concluded the acceptance of an interim ex-officio appointment would still constitute a vacancy in the formerly held seat.
- Once a vacancy is established we must hold a special election to fill the vacancy in accordance with Senate Bylaw 12.43: "Any vacancy which may occur between regular elections among elected senators to the University Senate shall be filled by a special election. Any person so elected shall represent the appropriate academic unit and shall serve the remainder of the vacated term."
- We considered whether service in an "interim ex-officio" role should be considered an "absence" instead of a vacancy. We concluded that if the interim service lasts no more than three meetings, the seat is simply absent. As such the bylaws would not require a special election or appointment to fill the seat of the absent Senator. However, during the period of absence, the member cannot appoint a proxy to that seat while serving in the interim ex-officio role. That violates the fundamental parliamentary law of one person, one vote.
- We concluded that an interim service that is longer than three meetings would constitute a vacancy in accordance with Senate Bylaw 12.41(d)(i): "The Senate seat of an elected member shall become vacant when the member: is absent without a proxy for three consecutive regular meetings." Beyond three meetings, the absence is too lengthy. The electorate's representation on the Senate is seriously diminished. Hence, the seat would be considered vacant and a special election would be held to fill the seat in accordance with
- We unanimously agreed that, if directed by the Senate, the CBC would draft and bring forward as resolutions, modifications to the bylaws that would allow: 1) elected Senators to return to their seats after serving interim ex-officio positions; and 2) allow for appointments of interim Senators to fill the vacated seat during the period of interim ex-officio service.

#### **Faculty Affairs Committee:**

The Faculty Affairs Committee will have its first meeting of the semester on Monday, February 1st, at 11:00 am in NHE 119.

We will shortly and at long last be bringing forward the revised IP policy, as well as a detailed plan and schedule for addressing the issues re: student evaluations which will be the focus of our work this semester.

#### **Integrated Curriculum Committee:**

The ICC continues working on:

- Curriculum Proposals
- Revisions to the PREP process and WASC Core Competency Assessment.
- Update on the Probationary Status for Rangeland Resources/Wildland Soils: Senate Resolution 12-09/10/EX from Nov. of 2009 recommended a four-year probationary continuation of the RRWS program dependent upon the program's success at meeting benchmarks that were to be negotiated between the Dean, the Department, and the Provost. If those benchmarks were not met, the ICC was to automatically recommend to the Senate that RRWS should be discontinued. RRWS has done well

Administrative Affairs:		
Quarterly Senate Report attached		
Quarterly Schate Report attached		
University Advancement:		
Spring Semester Update attached		

enough at meeting those benchmarks that the ICC is not recommending discontinuation. It is our understanding, however, that the College of Natural Resources and Sciences will continue to work with RRWS to identify and implement appropriate measures to ensure the program's continued viability.

# HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY Administrative Affairs' Written Report for University Senate January 26, 2016

#### Vice-President's Office/Division-Wide

- Forward the mission and goals of the University and CSU:
  - Charged the Climate Action Plan Committee to develop a Climate Action Plan for HSU.
  - Charged task force with developing a process to align strategic budgeting with annual budget allocation process across the university.
  - Refine the planning, goals, and accountability process (PREP) with focus on developing an annual assessment plan using key performance indicators (KPIs). Scheduled a half-day workshop with Institutional Resource and Planning (IRP) and division leads for December.
  - Participate in strategic plan implementation. Leading Goal 4 of HSU Strategic Plan efforts.
- Improve teamwork within the unit and across the University:
  - Enhance professional development and expand VP leadership team's leadership skills. Working with division leadership on understanding Good to Great and Great by Choice information from the Jim Collins books.
  - Develop and improve policies and procedures.
    - Working on a New Employee On-boarding process and checklist that begins with justifying the position through the employee's successful first year.
    - Developing a Centralized Subpoena Coordination process with key campus and OGC stakeholders with Spring 2016 implementation.
  - Provide excellent customer service, including updating our websites' design and content to better serve our campus community. Web sites movement to Drupal are expected to be completed the week of December 1 and additional customer-centric changes are expected to be completed in the coming year.
  - Increase transparency, collaboration, and accountability across the HSU community by embracing collaborative problem solving and inclusive communication that begins to break down silos and creates a climate of trust, respect, teamwork, and integrity.
  - Be a champion for social justice by looking for ways to continue the conversation around unconscious bias and diversity that will create a culture on campus that is inclusive, welcoming, and celebrates multiple perspectives.

#### **Business Services Unit**

(Reorganized unit management by folding the Associate Vice President position after the retirement of the incumbent. Managers report directly to VP. Managers are working on revising goals and outcomes to align with HSU's strategic plan and goals.)

Goal 1: Develop interfaces with students, families and the community in Spanish to support our institution designation as a HSU and support diversity and student success.

Contracts, Procurement, and Risk Management (CP&RM): Train various staff within the Emergency
Operations Center (EOC) Call Center to be able to communicate in Spanish. In the process of
identifying staff that would be willing to work the EOC Call Center. Once we have identified staffing
needs, determine which staff would be interested in learning Spanish. Currently reviewing SkillPort
to see if there are any training modules available for staff.

Goal 2: Review and update its major operating procedures to ensure they are consistent with the strategic goals of the University.

 CP&RM: In Process: Effectively Manage Delegation of Authority Policy by Position for MPPs & Department Chairs, Central Events Live25, and Risk Management & Safety Services (RM&SS) Campus-wide Injury, Illness & Prevention program guides.

- Payroll: Completed: Labor Distribution Process and Request Time Administration Process guides. In Process: Pay Adjust Process, Nolij-Archived historical payroll documents, and SPF Medical Bill Process guides.
- Student Financial Services: Reviewing and updating major operating procedures with focus on streamlining, moving to paperless format, and creating "self-service" opportunities.

Goal 3: Provide all staff with professional development and training opportunities for staff development to enhance knowledge of functional area topics. Develop the 2016-17 training plan that will alien with the University strategic plan.

- Accounting: Created individual training plans and participating in trainings.
- CP&RM: Assigned a variety of CSU function-specific and advanced Excel and Word training.
- Payroll: In Process: Attend North Coast Employers Advisory Group Employment law workshop
  pertaining to California wage and labor law (membership starts in January), cross training within
  Payroll Department, and Payroll staff will review Glacier Non-Resident Alien tax reporting webinar
  trainings.
- Student Financial Services In process including, training activities that have provided opportunities to collaborate with fellow CSU's in their functional areas and share best business practices.

#### Additional activities of note:

• CP&RM: Implemented CSU / Staples office supply ordering web site in October and automated Travel Authorization process is anticipated to go live in January.

#### **Facilities Management Unit**

(Note: As with other Administrative Affairs departments, as guides, policies, etc. that are applicable to the campus are completed, they will be published to Facilities Management's website.)

Goal: Streamline Processes to Capture Efficiency & Increase Consistency, Transparency & Accountability

- Objective: Develop Workflow Improvements & Documentation to Streamline Services & Efficiencies (35% Complete) Development of project and work order process and flow charts underway.
- Objective: Develop Protocols to Successfully Guide Projects 35% Complete. Developed checklists for Major Tasks. Developing Standard Operating Procedure Concerning Definition and Management of Projects including Applicable Project Management Fees. Plan to Update University Capital Project Management Plan.
- Objective: Improve Periodic Maintenance for Buildings & Campus Systems 35% Complete.
   Transferred existing periodic maintenance work orders into AIM. Working on prioritization process and ensuring that they meet appropriate maintenance standard. Planning on revising those orders based on new definitions and standards.

Goal: Improve the Customer Interface to Ensure Services are Transparent & Supportive of the Campus

- Objective: Implement Initiatives to Ensure Services are Transparent 25% Complete. Working on a comprehensive update of the Facilities Management website.
- Objective: Improve Campus Space Management & Utilization 25% Complete. Campus adopted a Space Management policy and regulation. Conducting space audits for designated buildings. Planning to develop protocol for reporting and managing space changes within campus space management software solution (FacilitiesLink).
- Objective: Develop Guidelines for the Provision of Maintenance & Operation Services 35% Complete.
   Assigning maintenance level definitions to each building and Landscape Zone as well as custodial care definitions. Developing maintenance service level agreements for non-state and 100% fee support organizations.

Goal: "Sharpen the Saw" to Increase Deep Knowledge within the Organization & Modernize Systems for Efficient Delivery of Services

- Objective: Replace Existing Computerized maintenance management system (CMMS Software) 65% Complete. Updating and transferring information/data into AIM. Developed new integrated customer service request web page. Training underway.
- Objective: Implement Initiatives to Further Operationalize Sustainability into Facilities Management Functions 30% Complete. Facilitating achievement of Green Workplace certification for other departments. Developing Climate Action Plan, and working to attain Tree Campus USA status.
- Objective: Develop Personnel Training Plans with Focus on Interdependencies & Skill Achievement 30% Complete. Training plan developed for FY15/16. Additional training for staff being researched.

Goal: Maintain the Physical Endowment to Ensure the University is Capable of Delivering Its Core Programs & Services Today and in the Future

- Objective: Prioritize Completion of Periodic Maintenance Work Orders 40% Complete. Developed
  updated definitions for priorities associated with completion of work orders. Planning to refine
  deployment of resources to ensure completion of periodic maintenance work orders. Developing
  management dashboard in AIM to allow conscious understanding of resource deployment.
- Objective: Implement Strategies to Improve Operational Efficiency & More Effective Assignment of Work 50% Complete. Participating in APPA Facilities Performance Indicator Survey. Training managers in AIM on resource deployment and resource loaded scheduling.
- Objective: Pursue Initiatives to Improve Campus Utility Efficiency & Management 35% Complete. Reviewing contract language for PG&E's Sustainable Solutions Turnkey Program. Implementing PG&E large integrated audit program. Implementing Chancellor's Office-funded energy efficiency projects. Supporting Advancement's efforts to promote Green Fund.
- Objective: Develop a Prioritized Plan for Renovation of Fire & Life Safety Building Components 50% Complete. Prioritized replacement/renovation for Fire Alarm Systems. Analyzing priorities for replacement/renovation for elevators. Analyzing electrical loads and equipment connection needs for emergency generators.
- Objective: Pursue & Implement Campus Projects 30% Complete. Implementing Library Seismic project. Conducting additional planning for Jenkins Hall project. Developing design RFPs for other Chancellor's Office-funded projects.

#### Parking & Commuter Services

Goal: Adopt & Implement Regulations, Policies and Procedures to Streamline & Modernize Operations While Increasing Service to the Campus

- Objective: Adopt & Implement Regulations 80% Complete. Regulations updated. Working toward implementation in Spring 2016.
- Objective: Adopt & Implement Operational Standards 30% Complete.
- Objective: Adopt & Implement Operating Procedures 30% Complete.

Goal: Improve the Campus Interface through Transparent & Readily Available Information and Customer-Focused Communications

- Objective: Implement Initiatives to Ensure Services are Transparent 80% Complete. Implemented a comprehensive update to the website. Developing a services handbook.
- Objective: Ensure Information is Readily Available to the Campus Community 30% Complete.
   Updating website with Parking & Transportation Committee agendas and meeting minutes, budget, and other informational data...

Goal: Implement Service Improvements to Increase Alternative Transportation Options

- Objective: Improve & Expand JackPass Program 80% Complete. Negotiated with transportation agencies to expand JackPass routes.
- Objective: Investigate Other Alternative Transportation Options 30% Complete. Managing Zipcar and Zimride programs. Developing carpool transportation options.

Objective: Implement Improvements to Increase Use of Alternative Transportation 25% Complete.
 Repaired crosswalks. Developing sidewalk repair and pedestrian safety streetlight projects.

Goal: Modernize Management Systems & Improve Use of Technology to Deliver Services & Programs

• Objective: Develop Business Plan 25% Complete. Framework developed. Collecting data.

Goal: Maintain, Improve & Expand Existing Facilities in a Sustainable Manner

Objective: Improve Existing Facilities 50% Complete. Installed improvements and increased number of stalls available. Evaluating other lots for re-alignment to increase number of stalls. Developing plan for additional pavement improvement projects.

#### **University Budget Office**

Goal 1: Provide leadership to the institution by properly stewarding resources and aligning them with priorities

- Provide leadership and support in developing strategic budgeting framework (In progress)
- Establish an integrated resource request and allocation process connected to assessment (In progress)
  - o Task Force has been established End of Feb 2016 Deadline
- Implement Questica (Budgeting tool) to increase campus access to budget information and to provide a better resource for holistic, multi-year planning and forecasting – spring 2016 roll out (In progress)
  - o Integrations and budget exports complete
  - o Running parallel with former Access system
  - Reports in development
  - Documentation and user guides have been developed
- Revamp management reports and dashboards to streamline preparation and improve value to the campus (In Progress)
- Provide support to campus in development of five year business plans
  - Create financial plan template (Complete)
  - o Partner with self-supports to develop and review five year financial plans (Ongoing)
- Redesign Budget Book to establish a more strategic focus (In progress)
  - Develop one-page budget infographic (In progress)

Goal 2: Improve campus understanding of budget and financial concepts (through training, process improvement and communication)

- Revamp website to improve customer interface (In progress)
- Develop interactive HSU budget guide First phase by end of December (In progress)
- Champion administrative process improvement initiatives
  - o Wooden Nickel Project
    - Cost Allocation recommendation by end of Jan 2016 (In progress)
    - Internal Chargebacks (In progress)
  - Release time billing and revenue distribution process (In progress)

Goal 3: Solidify core functions and services (In progress)

Goal 4: Pursue research and professional development opportunities to enhance expertise, generate ideas, build networks, and leverage best practices

- Establish department professional development plan (Complete)
- Expand CSU network
  - Participate in system-wide committees and present at CSU conferences (In progress)
  - Partner with other campuses to leverage best practices Had day-long budget meeting with Sonoma to brainstorm ideas and share knowledge and processes (Complete)
- Incorporate brainstorming sessions into weekly team meetings (In progress)
- Improve understanding and promote social justice, diversity and sustainability (In progress)

#### **University Center**

Goal: Work with Facilities Management to identify priorities and strategies for the continued development of Dining Services venues, both new and established.

- Objective: Plan for design improvements for the Depot
  - o Phase 1 Seating area refresh and furnishings upgrade
  - Phase 2 Servery and restroom upgrades
- Objective: Complete design and construction on College Creek Marketplace refrigeration
- Objective: Identify possible locations for mobile food service venues
- Objective: Work with Housing to develop plans for expanded service in the bottom floor of the JGC / Cupboard area for Fall 2016 opening.

Goal: Enhance professional development opportunities for Dining staff.

- Objective: Establish profession development goals and opportunities for senior Dining staff
  - Develop goals and plans for senior staff (Completed)
  - o Provide funds to accomplish goals including training, conference travel, etc.
- Objective: Improve Training and Learning Opportunities for Dining staff
  - Work with Executive Chef consultant to assess training and learning opportunities for Dining staff (Consultation completed)

Goal: In support of the University's commitment to sustainability, continue to develop, implement, and promote measures that increase Dining Services' environmental sustainability.

- Objective: Develop system for composting food waste and other compostables
  - o Work with campus sustainability programs to identify equipment necessary (Completed)
  - o Develop and deliver signage and education plan at consumer level
  - o Continue to identify methods and products that will reduce waste at the pre-consumer level.
- Objective: Reduce energy consumption
  - o Identify lighting and equipment that will result in significant reduction in energy use
  - LED lighting replacement where possible (J nearly complete)

Goal: Purchase equipment and do venue improvements for use at large-scale concerts in the West Gym

- Objective: Purchase a supplemental sound system for CenterArts productions
- Objective: Purchase crowd control barricades
  - o Completed. Barricades purchased and operational
- Objective: Install electrical upgrades

Goal: Work with HSU Facilities Management on a ten-year plan to address the University Center's Facility Condition Assessment Report.

- Objective: Complete Prioritization for Projects Identified in Report
- Objective: Incorporate projects related to programmatic changes in the UC

Goal: Work with the campus and the Event & Conference Working Group to support future growth in Conferences and Event Management.

Goal: Work with campus units including Risk Management to facilitate centralized campus scheduling

#### **University Police Department**

- 2015-2016 Focus
  - Prevent crime, reduce the fear of crime, and improve the quality of life for the HSU community.
  - Develop stronger bonds and improved collaboration between the HSU community and the Police Department.
  - Augment education and crime prevention training across the campus.
  - o Advance best practices for a safe and viable community.

# HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY ADVANCEMENT SPRING SEMESTER UPDATE FOR THE UNIVERSITY SENATE JANUARY, 2016

#### **HIGHLIGHTS:**

We received \$7,079,640 in contributions from more than 6,600 donors during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Unrestricted contributions were \$281,000 of the total and \$1,269,372 was for permanent endowment including a second \$1.0 million endowment contribution by the Bernard J. Osher Foundation to support the HSU Osher Lifelong Learning Institute.

The University has 52,240 alumni of record, 29,844 of whom were solicited. 3,035 alumni made contributions for a gross participation rate of 5.8%

The Humboldt Investment Pledge continues to gain recognition and the Humboldt State University Advancement Foundation is divesting its institutional funds from fossil fuel investments and is launching an initiative to fund green program related investments. The Foundation has become a signatory to the United Nations Principles of Responsible Investment, only the seventh University in North America to do so.

A charitable bequest of more than \$200,000 from the estate of alumnus Malcolm Buchannan is providing support of the university library. Buchannan was a career educator who fondly remembered working as a student at the library.

The Advancement Foundation continues to monitor the investment performance of the endowment. For the year ending June 30, 2015, the endowment earned a positive net total return of 1.72% which, although ahead of its benchmarks, was disappointing compared to the double digit returns of the past few years. For the first half of the current fiscal year the endowment is down 2.9%. The investment objective of the endowment is to provide a stable level of financial support for University programs and its investments are heavily weighted toward equities, which magnifies the impact of turbulence in the stock market.

#### **OVERVIEW OF UNIVERSITY ADVANCEMENT:**

The purpose of Humboldt State University Advancement is to enhance the reputation and standing of the University and to maximize voluntary support that is responsive to the priority needs of the University, in both the short term and the long term, in ways that are fulfilling to both contributors and volunteers. Our vision is that all alumni, campus partners, and others who care about the institution are engaged in meaningful relationships in support of Humboldt State University.

University Advancement plays a key role in the implementation of the 2015-20 strategic plan which calls for a significant expansion of external partnerships in support of the University. The management and cultivation of constituent relationships for the long term is our top priority with

an emphasis on the quality of our donors' experiences. The transition from traditional fundraising to a donor centered approach is building a culture of philanthropy on campus.

Humboldt State University Advancement encompasses five key initiatives on behalf of the University: Marketing and Communications, Alumni and Engagement, Philanthropy, KHSU-FM, and Humboldt State University Advancement Foundation:

Marketing and Communications – Humboldt State's people are at the heart of what we do. We share stories about their aspirations and successes. Through them we tell the larger story of our University. Our goal is to create stronger connections between Humboldt State University and our extended family including prospective students, current students, faculty and staff, alumni, benefactors, and the community.

**Alumni and Engagement: "Forever Humboldt"** – Alumni and Engagement, which we have branded "Forever Humboldt," fosters a strong and dynamic community of lifelong supporters and provides opportunities for engagement for all individuals, alumni and non-alumni alike. In addition to traditional alumni relations programs, our supporters participate in many areas of Humboldt's educational and service missions which encourages them to be lifelong members of a community that spans time and distance.

**Philanthropy** – The Office of Philanthropy is responsible for all fundraising programs for the University, including annual giving, mid- and major-level giving, planned giving, prospect research, gift processing and stewardship, and soon corporate and foundation relations. The Office of Philanthropy works with the Humboldt State University Advancement Foundation as well as our Deans and other University leadership to increase private charitable support for the University's initiatives.

KHSU-FM – KHSU is our community-supported, non-commercial public radio station, licensed to, supported by, and located on the Humboldt State University campus. KHSU broadcasts a diverse mix of programs to a population of about 135,000 people throughout Northwest California and Southwest Oregon. Our newly licensed radio station KHSM-FM provides a 24-hour news and information service for the region.

**Humboldt State University Advancement Foundation** – The Humboldt State University Advancement Foundation serves the University by stewarding and deploying financial assets on behalf of the University, raising new charitable contributions for the University, and advocating in favor of the University. An independent Board of Directors provides advocacy to increase charitable giving as well as expertise and fiduciary oversight to manage the endowment and other charitable funds.

#### PRIMARY GOALS OF UNIVERSITY ADVANCEMENT:

- 1. Create a campus environment that understands and appreciates philanthropy, eschew transactional fundraising, and educate the campus about the advantages of this paradigm shift.
- 2. Build a tightly integrated program of constituent and alumni engagement that provides multiple opportunities for meaningful engagement to alumni and constituents and encourages deeper involvement in the University with the objective of building lifelong relationships in support of the University.

3. Build a base of loyal and consistent donors, regardless of level, by using mass customized approaches to provide attention and service appropriate to the level of the contribution, regularly upgrade supporters and convert them to multi-year sustaining donors, and strengthen the capacity to capitalize on major gift opportunities as they arise.

#### Objective One: Provide opportunities for meaningful engagement locally and beyond

The University must be intentional about engaging its constituents, especially those residing outside the Humboldt County area. While the University's recruitment efforts have focused on distant students, the engagement of supporters and potential donors tended to be more locally focused. In collaboration with the field staff of the Admissions Office, we are increasing our outreach to alumni and supporters across the State. Unlike traditional alumni events, which tend to be mere social mixers, we program our events to deliver compelling messages and information about the University and to include specific calls to action and opportunities for further engagement.

We have branded this initiative "Forever Humboldt" to differentiate it from traditional alumni relations and signify a welcome for everyone, alumni and non-alumni alike, in support of Humboldt State. The results have been very positive. Relationships established and intelligence gathered via these efforts is preserved and collated in a centralized constituent relationship management database and Office of Philanthropy staff follow up individually and in groups to reinforce and deepen these relationships.

#### **Objective Two: Focused fundraising efforts**

Humboldt State University is challenged by a lack of well-qualified major gift prospects. Previous efforts to deploy field development officers in search of major gift prospects produced disappointing results and proved to be too costly in relation to prospects identified and new contributions secured. Compounding this challenge is our remote location, the attendant costs of travel, and the wide dispersion of our alumni, making traditional face-to-face prospecting highly inefficient.

In order to overcome these obstacles we have developed new ways to identify, cultivate, and build donor relationships from a distance. We believe that our best opportunity for success is in carefully segmenting our efforts into three distinct target audiences: mass market, mid-level donors, and major gift donors.

Humboldt State has long had an impressive annual giving program, regularly leading the entire CSU in the percentage of alumni who give each year. Building on this strength we have implemented a new on-line giving facility and are actively driving donors toward sustaining and continuous giving opportunities.

The largest potential for Humboldt State lies in our mid-level group, those capable of making an annual contribution of one- to ten-thousand dollars but not at the major gift level. For this mid-level pool we have implemented a program of one-to-one assigned staff relationship managers who will cultivate and develop these prospects from a distance using mass customization techniques.

Humboldt State's threshold for a "major gift" is considerably lower than other institutions, and the number of qualified prospective donors at this level is only a few hundred. We reserve our best face-to-face relationship management efforts for this level.

#### **Objective Three: Create a culture of philanthropy**

The campus continues to grapple with the role of philanthropy and the relationship of donors and fundraising to the University. Misgivings and qualms stemming from incidents involving advancement employees from many years ago continue to impede the acceptance of University Advancement and contribute to a reluctance to embrace charitable donors as partners rather than mere sources of revenue. Campus support and enthusiasm for fundraising has been diluted by slow growth in tangible results even as the Division was perceived to be increasing its presence.

Building a culture of philanthropy where donors are welcomed as partners rather than viewed as revenue is an essential step toward ensuring that all donors are generous in relation to their means. We are taking several steps to advance a campus culture of philanthropy:

- Build trust in University Advancement by developing reasonable and clear procedures and guidelines and ensuring that campus users understand them and the reasons behind them.
- Involve others, especially faculty and academic leadership, in the cultivation, solicitation, and stewardship of charitable contributions in order to provide first-hand experience with donors.
- Tell stories about specific items made possible by charitable contributions in order to make concrete the impact of charitable gifts.
- Provide quick and accurate service to others on campus, especially the recipients of charitable contributions, and provide complete explanations in order to demystify philanthropy.

#### **Objective Four: Enhance the institutional brand**

Humboldt State enjoys significant name recognition and high positive association, however the University has suffered from a lack of a cohesive and coherent brand image and messaging. Working with a branding consultant we have developed a strategic branding initiative and brand guidelines. This work is supportive of the priorities identified in the strategic plan, including student recruitment and retention, development activities, grant-seeking activities, constituent engagement, and internal communications.

Brand guidelines including a user-friendly brand platform designed to encourage easy adoption by campus departments and units will be rolled out to the campus during the Spring semester.

We are completing legal work to trademark the Humboldt State logo and brand identity and will implement a licensing program next year. Although licensing is not anticipated to provide significant revenue, it is an important step in protecting and extending the University brand value.

During the current year we will complete the first inventory of the University's various external relations efforts, identify strengths and gaps, seek opportunities for collaborative work among departments and divisions, and begin to hone a coordinated and cohesive external voice for the University.

Report on Academic Senate CSU Plenary Meeting January 20-22, 2016 Catherine Nelson, SSU Statewide Senator

#### **Resolutions Passed**

AS-3237-15/FGA CSU Acknowledgement of California Taxpayers as University Donors: This resolution encourages campus Senates, campus Advancement/Philanthropy offices and the Chancellor's office to find ways to acknowledge the role of taxpayers in funding the CSU.

AS-3238-15/AA Role of California State University Faculty in the Evaluation of Courses for Transfer: This resolution stems from concerns raised by campus senate chairs about the implications for course transferability raised by AB 386, CSU Fully Online Courses and the advent of upper division GE courses in CCC BA degree programs. It affirms that campus curricula and the satisfactory completion of degree requirements are the purview of local campus faculty. It also encourages campus academic senates to develop policies or review existing policies for transfer of courses that: ensure the primacy of faculty in establishing the criteria for, and evaluation of, the transferability of courses; ensure communication between articulation officers, academic advisors, department chairs and curricular and shared governance bodies; maintain a clear and transparent process to meet degree requirements; facilitate progress toward graduation; and allow for the re-evaluation of articulated courses by faculty. Passed unanimously.

AS-3239-15/FA Inclusion of Non-Tenure Track Instructional Faculty in Faculty Orientation Programs: This resolution advocates for the inclusion of lecturers in annual and semi-annual faculty orientation days (including these days as part of compensated contractual time). It also encourages campuses, in the context of faculty orientation, make available to all lecturers and non-tenure-track faculty information such as teaching resources and other materials relevant to student success, general campus resource information, and specific materials relevant to the rights and benefits and professional opportunities available to CSU lecturers. Passed unanimously.

AS-3240-15/FA/FGA Request for Joint Task Force to Develop an Action Plan for Ongoing Tenure/Tenure Track Recruitment: This resolution thanks the Board of Trustees, Chancellor, Governor and Legislature for recognizing the need to increase tenure/tenure-density in the CSU and for providing in the 2015-16 budget, baseline funding specifically targeted for the hire of tenure-track faculty. The resolution further calls upon the Chancellor, working with the ASCSU, to establish a joint task force for the purpose of developing a multi-year plan to increase tenure/tenure-track density in the CSU, while maintaining or reducing the student to faculty ratio. It also asks that the California Faculty Association be invited to have members serve on the Task Force. Passed unanimously.

AS-3242-16/EX Acceptance of the ICAS Statement on Preparation in Natural Science Expected of Entering Freshman: The Intersegmental Committee of Academic Senates (made up of the executive committees of the statewide academic senates of the UC, CSU and CCC) creates competency statements as a means to advise high school students and their families about what kind of intellectual preparation is necessary for success in California higher Education. Competency statements are submitted to the statewide senates of each segment for acceptance or rejection (but not for amendment). This resolution indicates the ASCSU's acceptance of the ICAS Statement on Competencies in the Natural Sciences Expected of Entering Freshmen, and commends the ICAS task force for their efforts to develop a statement that reflects Next Generation Science Standards and provides a greater focus on student learning outcomes. ICAS competency statements are available at: <a href="http://icas-ca.org/competencies">http://icas-ca.org/competencies</a>. Passed unanimously.

AS-3243-16/FGA Commendation for Karen Y. Zamarripa – Assistant Vice Chancellor, CSU Advocacy and State Relations This resolution commends AVC Zamarripa for her advocacy efforts on behalf of the CSU during her 25 years with the system. Passed unanimously.

AS-3247-16/FA Restoring Research, Scholarship, and Creative Activities (RSCA) Funds as a Line Item in the CSU Operations Budget: In 2009-10, the CSU suspended funding for the Research, Scholarship and Creative Activities program. In 2010-11 funds were allocated again, but suspended again in 2011-12. Funds remained suspended until 2014-15, when \$2.4m in funding was re-instated for the program, but not as a permanent line item in the budget. This resolution urges the Chancellor's Office to restore RSCA funds as a permanent line item in the CSU Operations Budget.

#### **First Reading Resolutions**

AS-3241-16/APEP A Need for Analysis of the Data Related to Changing Demographics of California State University: Given the increased demands to reduce time to degree completion and close the achievement gap, this resolution calls for a task force to examine and analyze the existing student demographic data and determine the implications for students' abilities to meet these demands.

AS-3244-16/APEP Support for Four Years of Mathematics as a Requirement for Admission to the California State University: The CSU currently requires three years of high school math for admission to the CSU. This resolution calls for the CSU to require a fourth year of high school mathematics/quantitative reasoning as a requirement for admission to the CSU. It also calls for a mathematics/quantitative course to be completed as part of the senior (final) year of high school.

AS-3245-16/AA Selection of Faculty to Serve on Campus Honorary Degree Committees: At its November 2015 meeting, the CSU Board of Trustees approved an

Honorary Degree Policy that, among other things, specifies the process for the selection of faculty representatives on campus honorary degree committees. This resolution asserts that faculty representatives serving on campus honorary degree committees should be selected by faculty. It also expresses concern that the Trustees' policy authorizing campus presidents to select faculty in consultation with faculty, rather than authorizing faculty to select their own representatives, violates AS-3160-13/EX/FA Selection of Faculty representatives in Shared Governance and the American Association of University Professors (AAUP) Statement on Government of Colleges and Universities.

AS-3246-16/EX Promoting Inclusion Within the CSU Community: This resolution affirms the ASCSU's commitment to promoting an inclusive CSU community, acknowledges the negative consequences of workplace bullying and urges the Chancellor, campus presidents, provosts and vice presidents of Academic Affairs to continue to expand policies and explore strategies that promote inclusive workplace environments. It also urges campus senates to engage in conversations that are conducive to promoting inclusivity to promote respect for the dignity of all CSU community members.

The full text of resolutions approved by the ASCSU is available at: http://calstate.edu/AcadSen/Records/Resolutions/

University Senate ICC Consent Calendar 1-26-2016

15-068: Art 280: Beginning Jewelry – change course number to ART 282 (because 280 is a Special Topics number) – Change title to Jewelry/Small Metals I, revise course description – This was one of many similar Art proposals that clarified the Studio Art course titles and descriptions. We consented approval of all of those in November, but this proposal was held up because of the need to change the course number. Jodie caught the problem with the course number, and then Art had to respond, and then we need to move the revised proposal to the Consent Calendar, and somehow that final step never happened.

Because of the need to meet the catalog deadline, the fact that all the similar proposals were approved with no questions asked, and the fact that we messed up, Cindy and Jodie decided to send this proposal on to the catalog before it had official ICC and Senate approval. If anyone wishes to object, we can still pull the proposal out of the 2016/17 catalog.

## HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY University Senate

## Resolution on a New Concentration in Economics for the Business Administration Major

15-15/16-ICC - January 26, 2016

**Resolved:** That the University Senate of Humboldt State University recommends to the Provost that a new Concentration in Economics in the Business Administration Major as proposed in Curriculum form 14-315 be approved.

Rationale: Students in this concentration will complete the business core plus 22-24 units of Economics and Business Statistics courses. No new courses will be needed for the concentration. The Business Administration and Economics programs expects to have sufficient room in classes to serve the expected 35-40 students in this concentration without adding more sections of courses. Students will not be permitted to earn both a Business major with a Concentration in Economics and a Minor in Economics.

## HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY University Senate

#### Resolution to Appoint an Interim President of the General Faculty

16-15/16-CBC- January 26, 2015 - First Reading

**RESOLVED:** That a Faculty Session of the University Senate of Humboldt State University approves the appointment of Julia Alderson as interim General Faculty President to serve until the next regular election; and be it further

**RESOLVED:** That, if the General Faculty President-elect does not wish to begin serving immediately after the regular election, this interim appointment will continue until such time that the General Faculty President-elect begins their service; and be it further

**RESOLVED:** That this interim appointment may not continue past May 31, 2016

**RATIONALE:** The position of General Faculty President has been vacated by resignation. In accordance with section 4.72 of the Constitution of the General Faculty, the General Faculty Executive Committee have recommended the appointment of Julia Alderson to serve as interim General Faculty President until the next regular election. The faculty members of the University Senate must vote to approve this appointment.

The General Faculty President-elect may begin their term immediately after the regular election, on June 1, 2016 (which is the formal start of the General Faculty year), or on any date in between. The General Faculty President-elect may not be able to serve or may not wish to serve before June 1, 2016. So the interim appointment is allowed to continue as necessary until May 31, 2016 at the latest.